Minutes

BASEHOR CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION
December 10, 2007
6:00 p.m.
Basehor City Hall

Official Presiding: Mayor Chris Garcia

Members Present: Pres. Terry Thomas, Keith Sifford, Terry Hill, and Jim Washington
Members Absent: Iris Dysart

Staff Present: Carl Slaugh, Mary Mogle, Dustin Smith, Gene Myracle

1. DISCUSS 24-40 CORRIDOR ACCESS ISSUES

Mr. Slaugh reported KDOT representatives were unavailable. He explained one of the options
for the 24-40 Corridor Plan called for intersections at one-mile intervals, 150 Street, 158 Street,
166 Street, and 174 Street. He reported a signal light at 155" Street did not fit into the optimum
spacing as preferred by Kansas Department of Transportation (“KDOT”).  KDOT stated if the
City agreed to this spacing, they would provide funding to help with frontage roads along the
corridor. The funding is on a competitive basis with a dollar limit of $250,000 per project.
The City of Basehor would have to provide 33% of construction cost and pay for land acquisition
(i.e. easements, right-of-way) and engineering design.

Mr. Slaugh stated he asked if the Council wanted to leave the signal light at 155 Street,
explaining if the light was left, KDOT would require a median installed at 150 Street and 158
Street.  (Councilmember Washington arrived at 6:08 p.m.)

President Thomas asked how the fire department would access onto 155™ Street if KDOT made
155" Street a right-in/right-out only access.  Mr. Slaugh stated KDOT agreed to assist Basehor
with figuring out a design if the light was removed at 155" St.

Council discussed the changes made to the clover leaf at 142™ and K-7 Highway. John Flower
reported an outer road was going to be constructed off of 142" and K-7 Highway.

Councilmember Sifford asked how the area business owners felt about the light at 155" Street

being removed in the future. Mr. Slaugh reported KDOT’s approach goes back to the
engineer’s statement that the optimum solution between safety, access, and flow are based on
one-mile spacing with frontage roads. Mayor Garcia stated he read where MARC was

questioning why the 24-40 Corridor study was not complete at this time. Mr. Slaugh stated
some changes made by the Project Management Team and have been submitted to BWR

engineers.



Basehor City Council Work Session
December 10, 2007 Page 2 of 4

Mr. Slaugh reported the decision to remove the light at 155 Street & 24-40 Highway intersection
is yet to be determined. Mayor Garcia felt that KDOT was not listening to the City of Baschor.
Mr. Slaugh reported if Basehor decided not to sign the Memorandum of Understanding
(“MOU”), Basehor would revert back to the existing rules and KDOT would not provide funding

for other projects.

Council discussed what KDOT’s thoughts are about the time frame of when signaled

intersections would occur. Planning Director Dustin Smith stated KDOT was developing a
thirty-year plan. Councilmember Washington felt the City should fight “tooth and nail” for
what they want. Mr. Slaugh stated he did not feel KDOT was threatening, but trying to

resolve traffic problems. Councilmember Hill stated he felt the City could go along with the
State in principal and move forward with developing a plan.  Councilmember Washington felt
lives would be lost if 150™ Street did not become signalized.

Mr. Slaugh stated in order to get a resolution on 155™ Street; it would take another study or
traffic management plan to decide when the light would be removed and where frontage roads

would run.

Councilmember Washington asked when the new State Avenue interchange was targeted for
completion and once complete, would that particular section of State Avenue become property of
Wyandotte County. Mr. Slaugh answered yes expected completion in fall 2008.

Mr. Flower said after 24-40 Corridor Study was completed, it was his understanding there would
be federal funds available for studies.

Bill New, First State Bank & Trust, said his bank has been a key part of the commercial area for
Basehor and made a significant investment by building a new bank on the south corner of 155"
Street.  He stated they want to continue to work with Basehor and felt it was appropriate to say
he resents that KDOT was not willing to make concessions for Basehor unlike other cities such
as Tonganoxie.  He felt as soon as there was another fatality at 158" Street, he anticipated
KDOT putting a traffic light there. He wondered if there was a way to put a nice entrance to
Basehor going north and south.  Councilmember Washington noted Mr. New’s observations
were valid explaining he has studied the traffic pattern of the City and felt it would be a
minimum of twelve years before 155™ Street was removed.  Mr. New stated he felt the signal
light at 155™ Street would be removed in approximately five years under KDOT proposals.

President Thomas said his concern was that KDOT was the same organization that promised an
intersection at Falcon Lakes and “re-nigged”.  Councilmember Hill asked if there was a well-
designed frontage road in place along the corridor and felt there may be a possibility that a plan

could be put in place.

Ed Mclntosh said during his development project for the grocery store, his engineer did a traffic
count and stated he would like to see a study done that gave a time line when intersections would



Basehor City Council Work Session
December 10, 2007 Page 3 of 4

be signalized and frontage roads constructed.

Debbie Breuer said ideally, Basehor could purchase the property from the county line to the city
limits and be in total control of what happens in the future; however, the cost may be out of

Basehor’s control.

Dennis Breuer said KDOT required him to have a traffic study performed when they developed
Pinehurst Development. Based on that study, they were required to construct three-quarter mile
acceleration/deceleration lanes and now KDOT was telling them the lanes were no longer
needed. He felt the Council should consider the accessibility of the fire department as well.

2. Follow-up on joint meeting with Bonner Springs — Discuss proposed growth
boundaries and interlocal agreement with Leavenworth County dealing with
zoning, subdivision and building

Mr. Slaugh reported following the joint meeting with Bonner Springs, there were still
unanswered questions such as what kind of growth Basehor wants to see south of 24-40
Highway. He displayed a map of the area in question noting the only advantage in developing
an agreement with Bonner would be to show a willingness to work with them.

President Thomas said there was an article stating the County Commissioners were not willing to
give away territory and asked what would happen if Basehor requested permission from the
County to govern out to their growth area, I-70. Mr. Slaugh stated his conversation with the
County Commissioners was that they were not willing to give up any territory, but may be open
to Basehor issuing building permits and enforcing codes in the growth area.

Council discussed drafting an interlocal agreement with Leavenworth County to develop a
growth area south to I-70, Stranger Creek, and 7 Highway and not sign an agreement with the
City of Bonner Springs.  Resident George Smith suggested the City send a letter to the County
Commissioner expressing opposition to the annexation plan proposed by Bonner Springs.

Mr. Flower asked for clarification of the proposal that Basehor would send a letter to Bonner
Springs opposing their annexation plan.  President Thomas stated he did not feel it would was
necessary to send a letter, but recommended keeping an open dialogue with Bonner Springs.

Mr. New noted KDOT representative Chris Huffman was very capable and felt it would be in
Basehor’s best interested to schedule a meeting with State representatives.

3. Discussion regarding 2008 Wage Adjustments

Mr. Slaugh reported the 2008 Budget included a five percent wage increase (included $50,000 in
the budget for COLA and merit increases) and recommended an additional five percent for
positions that needed to be adjusted to remain competitive. The additional adjustment was not



Basehor City Council Work Session
December 10, 2007 Page 4 of 4

included in the budget and may need to come from the capital improvement and equipment
reserve funds. He did not anticipate raising the mill levy. After adjustments, the employees
would still be approximately five percent below the area median. He did not feel there was
adequate funds in the 2008 budget to bring the employees wages up to meet the area median.

4. Municipal Code — start review of Chapter 1 of the draft Municipal Code

Councilmember Washington insisted that the repealed Charter Ordinances be noted before
reviewing the proposed Municipal Code.

Mr. Slaugh stated part of the agreement with League of Kansas Municipalities was they would
update one time and would charge for additional updates. He recommended reviewing the
document and submitting all the changes at one time.

President Thomas reported since the City did not accept cash payments, that section should be
removed and requested Section 1-613 read “shall” demand prepayment rather than “may”.
Councilmember Washing stated all items should be paid in advance.

5. Review draft capital improvement plan

President Thomas asked who prepared the Capital Improvement Plan noting the building permit
information was somewhat skewed since it appeared to be incomplete. ~ Mr. Slaugh reported he
was working with intern Jared Cobb and explained past building permit information was not

available,

6. Close City Hall.

State of Kansas and Leavenworth County have declared their offices closed on Tuesday, and
Mayor Garcia will make a decision at 6:00 a.m. regarding closing The Governing Body
discussed the closing and agreed to declare an emergency closing for non-essential personnel.

Due to the ice storm, the work session was adjourned at 7:22 p.m.

Submitted for Council approval with/without corrections or additions this 7" day of January,
2008.

Mayor Chris Garcia
Attest:

‘Mary A. Mogle, CMC, City Clerk



Minutes

BASEHOR CITY COUNCIL
December 17, 2007
6:00 p.m.
Basehor City Hall

Official Presiding: Mayor Chris Garcia

Members Present: Pres. Terry Thomas, Iris Dysart, Keith Sifford, Terry Hill, Jim Washington
Members Absent: none

Staff Present: Carl Slaugh, Mary Mogle, Gene Myracle, Dustin Smith, Lt. Lloyd Martley,
Patrick Reavey

WORK SESSION - 6:00 p.m.

The work session was called to order by Mayor Garcia with all members present with the
exception of Councilmember Hill.

Discussion regarding 24-40 Corridor Plan.

Mr. Slaugh reported Kansas Department of Transportation (“KDOT”) representative Christy
Pyle was present to give more detail on the 24-40 Corridor plan.

Mrs. Pyle asked if council members had questions. President Thomas said his concern was at
what point did KDOT start counting the mileage and if the speed limit was reduced, would

Basehor be granted more traffic lights.

Mrs. Pyle said KDOT did not share the same views as Basehor since KDOT considers K-7 Hwy
as the beginning of 24-40 Highway. (Councilmember Hill arrived at 6:03 p.m.) She noted as
part of the new design K-7 Highway would no longer connect 141* to State Avenue once the

project was completed.

President Thomas stated Basehor paid to participate in the study; however, he felt the wishes of
Basehor had fallen on deaf ears. ~ Mrs. Pyle said if Basehor wants the signal light to remain at
155 Street, then other concessions would need to be made. President Thomas said KDOT
informed them they would not participate in funding other projects, if the light remained at 155%
Street and felt that was a form of blackmail.



Basehor City Council
December 17, 2007 Page 2 of 18

Mrs. Pyle said in order to maintain a 60 mph highway, KDOT needed to limit traffic signals.  If
lights were perfectly spaced, the speed limit would remain 65 mph. She explained if the City of
Basehor wanted to accept 24-40 Highway as a city street, they could allow the light at 155%™

Street.

Mrs. Pyle explained adding more lights to the area would hinder traffic flow to Tonganoxie in a
timely manner and suggested the City set a hypothetical timeline on the removal of 155" Street
once 158" Street traffic signal was installed. ~ Councilmember Washington said it should be a
benchmark timeline and felt that residents would eventually adapt to new routes. ~ Mrs. Pyle
stated KDOT could draft an interlocal agreement with the understanding once 158™ Street traffic
light was installed, steps would be taken to remove the traffic signal at 155" Street.

Councilmember Hill said he did not feel that Baschor should be treated different than the city of
Tonganoxie. Tonganoxie has seven tenths of one mile spacing and Basehor should receive the
same consideration. Mrs. Pyle said Tonganoxie only had one signal light that was shorter than
one mile.  Councilmember Hill said the city was only asking for five signalized intersections

and frontage roads.

Councilmember Washington asked what were other design options (i.e. right-in/right-out) were
available.  Mrs. Pyle said they had not explored other options such as three-quarter turns.
Councilmember Washington suggested looking into a three-quarter turn at 155™ Street.

Mr. Slaugh asked Mrs. Pyle if KDOT would approve signalized intersections at 142, 150, 155,
158, 166, and 174th Street. Mrs. Pyle stated in terms of experience KDOT found that limited
signals allow people to get to work in a timely manner. Business owners find their customers

want to get their businesses in a short amount of time.

Mr. Slaugh asked if the speed limit would remain 65 mph.  Mrs. Pyle stated KDOT would be
working with each city regarding the speed limits.  Currently, people want slower speed limits
so they can patronize local businesses; however, as the corridor grows, people will want to get to

their destiny quicker.

Mayor Garcia ask what the possibility of the Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) not
being honored in the future. ~ Mrs. Pyle said MOU’s were not legally binding and could be

amended by future Councils.

Mr. Slaugh asked if KDOT would allow the City to have all the signal lights they asked for and
still receive future funding.  Mrs. Pyle did not think KDOT would provide future funding for

frontage roads if the City chose to retain 155™ Street.

Mr. Flower asked according to the current traffic studies at 155" Street, how much increased
traffic would it take to remove the light at 155™ St.  Mrs. Pyle said it would take 3-5 times more
traffic to remove the light. He asked about 158" Street.  She said 158™ Street could probably



Basehor City Council
December 17, 2007 Page 3 of 18

take a light within 3-5 years. He felt KDOT would be willing to remove the light at 155"
Street on warrant.

Councilmember Washington stated 150™ Street had a connectivity problem and would definitely
need to be signalized.

George Smith said one-mile spacing was great; however, the city was talking about one
intersection and he felt 65 mph was too fast. He felt development would take place north of

155" Street since the area could be served by sewers.

Mrs. Pyle said the study included one-mile north and south of 24/40 Highway. ~KDOT found
that every road that intersected with the corridor had issues so they asked the city administrator
and city planner to come up with a plan.  Mr. Smith did not feel that one additional traffic
signal would make that big of a difference. = Councilmember Hill asked if KDOT thought about
how fire trucks would get through 155™ Street. Mrs. Pyle said that was taken into
consideration and it was felt emergency vehicles would get around the same way as residential

traffic.

David Breuer asked the status of the grant to improve 155™ Street. ~ Mr. Slaugh reported the
announcements have not been made yet.  If awarded, funding would not be available until year

2010.
1. Discussion regarding agenda items.
Due to time constraints agenda items were not discussed.

Seven minute break (6:53 p.m.).

REGULAR MEETING - 7:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL BY MAYOR CHRIS GARCIA AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
All members present. The city attorney was in attendance.

PUBLIC HEARING- Demolition of structures

15411 Parallel Road, Randy and Robin McDowell

Mr. McDowell requested permission to wait until spring to tear his building down.



Basehor City Council
December 17, 2007 Page 4 of 18

President Thomas noted he thought the city gave him until December to come up with a
resolution. Mr. McDowell said he thought the structure was sold; however, the person backed

out.

Councilmember Washington asked if the city could condemn the building and give Mr.
McDowell permission to remove the structure himself. Mr. Slaugh stated the city first needed
to declare the building as unsafe, and then the city could consider the demolition of the structure.

Mr. Reavey agreed that the purpose of the public hearing was for Council to hear from the
property owners and staff and then the city could give the property owner a reasonable time to
tear down the structure. If that time frame was not met; then the City would direct staff to move
forward with demolition.  He noted normally thirty days was a minimum time granted.

Mr. Smith said he was trying to use funding from 2007 budget for demolition but did not appear
that would happen.

President Thomas asked Mr. McDowell if ninety days would be a reasonable time. Mr.
McDowell asked if he could have until the end of April.

Mr. Reavey asked Mr. McDowell if he agreed the building was unsafe and should be torn down.
Mr. McDowell said the building set too low and when it rains, the building takes in water.

The building inspector gave a report on the items that he deemed unsafe:
e Unfit for human habitation, no water, sewer, electrical.
e Structure takes on water. Roof and chimney are need of repair.
e Blighted influence upon the surrounding area.
e Felt it would cost more than 50% of the fair market value to repair.

Mr. Reavey asked if the building was structurally safe.  Mr. Lee said the bottom of the building
was rotted out.  Mr. McDowell said the roof did not sag.

Citizen Comments — none

1104 N. 150" Street

Ed Mclntosh, 15395 Briar Dr. reported he has a contract with the property owner to buy the
property and planned to move the building to his personal property in the county. He also
requested a reasonable amount of time to remove the structure.

The building inspector gave the following report:
e Structure appeared to be used by hitchhikers and vagrants.
e Piles of clothing and furniture laying around.
e Building did not have electrical or sewer services.



















































